

BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES AND HOUSING AGENCY · GAVIN NEWSOM, GOVERNOR

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS • PHYSICAL THERAPY BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
2005 Evergreen Street, Suite 2600, Sacramento, CA 95815
P (916) 561-8200 | F (916) 263-2560
www.ptbc.ca.gov • facebook.com/ptbcnews • twitter.com/ptbcnews



1

Board Members

President

Alicia Rabena-Amen, PT, DPT

Vice-President

Katarina Eleby, M.A.

Members

Dayle C. Armstrong, Ph.D., P.T., MS, DPT

Jesus Dominguez, PT, PhD

Daniel Drummer, PT, DPT

Johnathon Ervin

Tonia McMillian

Physical Therapy Board of California Adopted Meeting Minutes

December 9-10, 2021 9:00 a.m.

Department of Consumer Affairs 2005 Evergreen Street, Hearing Room Sacramento, CA 95815

Board Staff

Jason Kaiser, Executive Officer
Elsa Ybarra, Assistant Executive Officer
Sarah Conley, Manager
Liz Constancio, Manager
Brooke Arneson, Executive Analyst

For the sake of clarity, agenda items discussed during the meeting follow their original order on the agenda in these minutes though some agenda items may have been taken out of order during the meeting.

4 5 6

2

3

Thursday, December 9, 2021

7 8

1. Call to Order

9 10

11

The Physical Therapy Board of California (Board) meeting was called to order by President Dr. Rabena-Amen at 9:31 a.m. and recessed at 5:25 p.m. on December 9, 2021.

12 13 14

2. Roll Call and Establishment of Quorum

15 16

17

18

19

Armstrong - Absent Dominguez- Present Drummer - Present Eleby - Absent Ervin - Absent

20 21

McMillian - Present

Rabena-Amen - Present

222324

25

26

All members were present with the exception of Dr. Armstrong, Ms. Eleby, and Mr. Ervin, and a quorum was established. Also present at the meeting were: Michael Kanotz, PTBC Legal Counsel; Jason Kaiser, Executive Officer; Elsa Ybarra, Assistant Executive Officer; Brooke Arneson, Board staff.

27 28

29

30

31

3. 32 **Reading of the Board's Mission Statement** 33 34 Dr. Drummer read the Board's mission statement: To advance and protect the 35 interests of the people of California by the effective administration of the Physical Therapy Practice Act. 36 37 4. 38 **Public Comment on Items Not on the Agenda** 39 Please note that the Board may not discuss or take action on any matter raised during this public comment section that is not included on this agenda, except 40 41 to decide whether to place the matter on the agenda of a future meeting. 42 (Government Code sections 11125, 11125.7(a).) 43 44 The Board requested public comment on items not on the agenda, and there 45 was no public comment. 46 5. Review, Discussion and Possible Board Action on Sunset Review Report 47 Pursuant to BPC Section 2602 – Jason Kaiser 48 49 PTBC staff presented the draft Sunset Review Report to the Board for review. Mr. Kaiser thanked the Sunset Subcommittee for their feedback and hard work 50 on the Sunset Review Report. The Board provided edits throughout the Sunset 51 52 Review Report which were made during the meeting. 53 54 6. Discussion and Possible Board Action Regarding Sunset Review 55 Subcommittee's Recommendation on Issues to be Identified on the **Sunset Review Report Pursuant to Business and Professions Code** 56 57 (BPC) Section – Jason Kaiser 58 59 PTBC staff presented the issues to be addressed in the draft Sunset Review 60 Report to the Board for further review. The Board provided edits and feedback throughout the Sunset Review Report Issues Section which were made during 61 62 the meeting. 63 7. Closed Session 64 65 (A) Pursuant to Government Code section 11126(c)(3), the Board will 66 convene to Deliberate on Disciplinary Actions and Decisions to be 67 Reached in Administrative Procedure Act Proceedings

(B) Pursuant to Government Code section 11126(a)(1), the Board will

convene to Consider the Evaluation of Performance of the Executive

68 69

70 71 Officer

72 73		The Board entered closed session at 4:55 p.m. and reconvened into open session to recess at 5:25 p.m. on December 9, 2021.
74		
75	8.	Public Comment on Items Not on the Agenda
76		Please note that the Board may not discuss or take action on any matter
77		raised during this public comment section that is not included on this agenda,
78		except to decide whether to place the matter on the agenda of a future
79		meeting. (Government Code sections 11125, 11125.7(a).)
80		The Board requested public comment on items not on the agenda, and there
81		was no public comment.
82		
83	9.	Recess
84		
85		The Board recessed at 5:25 p.m. on December 9, 2021.
86		Friday, December 10, 2021
87	40	Oall to Oadan
88	10.	Call to Order
89		The Dhysical Theorem Deeple of Octiferation (Deeple) was attached to surface
90		The Physical Therapy Board of California (Board) meeting was called to order
91		by President Dr. Rabena-Amen at 9:01 a.m. and recessed at 1:38 p.m. on
92 93		December 10, 2021.
93 94	11.	Roll Call and Establishment of Quorum
9 4 95	11.	Roll Call and Establishment of Quorum
93 96		Armstrong - Absent
90 97		Dominguez- Present
98		Drummer - Present
99		Eleby - Absent
100		Ervin - Absent
101		McMillian - Present
102		Rabena-Amen - Present
103		
104		All members were present with the exception of Dr. Armstrong, Ms. Eleby, and
105		Mr. Ervin, and a quorum was established. Also present at the meeting were:
106		Michael Kanotz, PTBC Legal Counsel; Jason Kaiser, Executive Officer; Elsa
107		Ybarra, Assistant Executive Officer; Brooke Arneson, Board staff.
108		
109	12.	Reading of the Board's Mission Statement
110		
111		Dr. Dominguez read the Board's mission statement: To advance and protect the

112 113		•	e of California by the effective administration of the	
113		Physical Therapy Practice Act.		
114	13.	Public Comment on It	tems Not on the Agenda	
	13.			
116			pard may not discuss or take action on any matter raised	
117		• ,	ment section that is not included on this agenda, except	
118			place the matter on the agenda of a future meeting.	
119		(Government Code sec	ctions 11125, 11125.7(a).)	
120		The Deemd resurrated		
121			oublic comment on items not on the agenda, and there	
122		was no public commen	I.	
123	4.4	Daview Discussion o	nd Bassible Board Action on Compat Bassico Barant	
124	14.	•	nd Possible Board Action on Sunset Review Report	
125		Pursuant to BPC Sect	tion 2602 – Jason Kaiser	
126		PTBC staff presented t	the draft Sunset Review Report to the Board for further	
127		•	ovided edits and feedback throughout the Sunset Review	
128		Report which were made	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
129		report miles were made	as daming the meeting.	
130		MOTION:	Adopt the proposed 2021 Sunset Review Report as	
131			revised, delegate to the Board President the authority	
132			to review and proof the revised version and authorize	
133			the Executive Officer to make any non-substantive	
134			changes to the 2021 Sunset Review Report and submit	
135			the Report to the Legislature.	
136			and respond to any Logiciana.	
137		M/S:	Rabena-Amen/Dominguez	
138			3	
139		VOTE:	Armstrong - Absent	
140			Dominguez- Aye	
141			Drummer - Aye	
142			Eleby - Absent	
143			Ervin - Absent	
144			McMillian - Aye	
145			Rabena-Amen – Aye	
146			4-0 Motion Carried	
147				
148	15.	Discussion and Possi	ible Board Action Regarding Sunset Review	
149			ommendation on Issues to be Identified on the	
150			t Pursuant to Business and Professions Code	
151		(BPC) Section – Jaso		
152		• ,		
153		PTBC staff presented	the issues to be addressed in the draft Sunset Review	

Report to the Board for further review. The Board provided edits and feedback 154 throughout the Sunset Review Report Issues Section which were made during 155 156 the meeting. 157 16. 158 President's Report – Alicia Rabena-Amen 159 (A) 2021 Adopted Meeting Calendar 160 Dr. Rabena-Amen presented the 2021 Adopted Meeting Calendar to the 161 members. There were no further discussion or changes to the 2021 162 adopted meeting calendar. 163 164 165 (B) 2022 Proposed Meeting Calendar 166 167 Mr. Kaiser stated that he is hopeful that the March 23-24, 2022, Board 168 meeting will be held in-person, however it depends on the pandemic and if 169 PTBC is unable to meet in-person, the meeting would be held via WebEx, or in Sacramento in lieu of Southern California. Mr. Kaiser solicited the 170 members for feedback on the proposed 2022 meeting dates. There were 171 172 no changes to the proposed 2022 calendar. Mr. Kaiser added that the calendar can be amended throughout the year as well. 173 174 MOTION: Adopt the Proposed 2022 Meeting Calendar 175 176 M/S: Drummer/Dominguez 177 VOTE: 178 Armstrong - Absent 179 Dominguez- Aye Drummer - Ave 180 181 Eleby - Absent Ervin - Absent 182 183 McMillian - Aye Rabena-Amen - Ave 184 4-0 Motion Carried 185 186 17. 187 Discussion and Possible Board Action on the 2022 Rulemaking Calendar 188 -Brooke Arneson 189 Ms. Arneson presented the proposed 2022 rulemaking calendar for Board 190 consideration and stated that the Office of Administrative Law (OAL) uses these 191 rulemaking calendars to anticipate upcoming projected rulemaking workload for 192 the year. 193

194		Mr. Kaiser added that	many of the rulemaking packages have been on the		
195		Board's rulemaking calendars for the previous few years and that the two new			
196		rulemaking items that the Board would be pursuing this year is retired license			
197		status and continuing competency.			
198		3	,		
199		MOTION:	Adopt the 2022 Rulemaking Calendar as required by		
200			Government Code Section 11017.6		
201					
202		M/S:	McMillian/Drummer		
203					
204		VOTE:	Armstrong - Absent		
205			Dominguez- Aye		
206			Drummer - Aye		
207			Eleby - Absent		
208			Ervin - Absent		
209			McMillian - Aye		
210			Rabena-Amen – Aye		
211			4-0 Motion Carried		
212			1 6 Motion Carriod		
213	18.	Discussion Regarding	g Waivers Issued by the Director of the California		
214	10.	Department of Consumer Affairs – Jason Kaiser			
215			CA-20-01 Continuing Education		
216		• •	ension DCA Waiver DCA-20-27		
217			Extension DCA Waiver DCA-20-53		
218			tension DCA Waiver DCA-20-69		
219			xtension DCA Waiver DCA-20-89		
220			ension DCA Waiver DCA-21-117		
221			ension DCA Waiver DCA-21-117		
222			Extension DCA Waiver DCA-21-152		
223			xtension DCA Waiver DCA-21-175		
224			ension DCA Waiver DCA-21-173		
225			CA-20-02 Reinstatement of Licensure		
226		` '	ension DCA Waiver DCA-20-57		
227			Extension DCA Waiver DCA-20-37		
228			tension DCA Waiver DCA-21-103		
229			xtension DCA Waiver DCA-21-107		
230			CA-20-09 Examination Requirement for Continued		
231		Physical Therapy	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		
232			ension DCA Waiver DCA-20-28		
232			Extension DCA Waiver DCA-20-46		
234			tension DCA Waiver DCA-20-46		
234		•	xtension DCA Waiver DCA-20-75		
236		e. Fiitii Ext	ension DCA Waiver DCA-21-122		

237		f. Sixth Extension DCA Waiver DCA-21-148
238		g. Seventh Extension DCA Waiver DCA-21-169
239		h. Eighth Extension DCA Waiver DCA-21-189
240		i. Ninth Extension DCA Waiver DCA-21-202
241		(D)DCA Waiver DCA-20-25 Extending Time to Satisfy Examination
242		Requirements
243		a. First Extension DCA Waiver DCA-20-66
244		b. Second Extension DCA Waiver DCA-20-78
245		c. Third Extension DCA Waiver DCA-21-107
246		d. Fourth Extension DCA Waiver DCA-21-131
247		e. Fifth Extension DCA Waiver DCA-21-155
248		f. Sixth Extension DCA Waiver DCA-21-177
249		g. Seventh Extension DCA Waiver DCA-21-197
250		
251		Ms. Arneson provided the members with an update on the three
252		extensions of the waivers issued by the Director of DCA. Mr. Kaiser
253		added that while most of the waivers have expired or will expire before the
254		end of the year, the effects of the waivers on staff workload will be felt until
255		mid-2022. *
256		
257	19.	Consumer and Professional Associations and Intergovernmental
258		Relations Reports
259		(A) Federation of State Boards of Physical Therapy (FSBPT)
260		(· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
261		There was no representative on behalf of FSBPT.
262		
263		Mr. Kaiser stated that he is encouraging all the members and PTBC staff to
264		attend this year's FSBPT Regulatory training.
265		
266		Dr. Dominguez added that FSBPT's LIF and Annual Meeting is currently
267		scheduled to be held in-person. He stated that the LIF training is scheduled
268		to be held July 23-24, 2022, in Alexandria, VA and the Annual Meeting and
269		Delegate Assembly will be held in Orange County, CA.
270		Bologato / todombly will be field in Crange County, Crt.
271		(B) Department of Consumer Affairs (DCA) – Executive Office
272		(B) Boparamon of Concamor Anamo (Box) - Excounte Chico
273		Ms. Brianna Miller with Board and Bureau Relations provided the Board
274		with an update on behalf of DCA. Ms. Miller reported on the COVID-19
275		safety measures and encouraged PTBC staff and members to coordinate
276		both in-person meetings and teleconference meeting logistics with DCA to
277		ensure that all safety protocols were being met.
		ensure that all safety protocols were being met.
278		

Ms. Miller reported that 2021 is a mandatory sexual harassment training year for members and all employees and this training can be accessed via DCA's Learning Management System (LMS). In addition, Ms. Miller stated that members can now register for the Board Member Orientation Training in LMS as well and the 2022 training dates are listed.

Dr. Rabena-Amen stated that the December Board meeting is being held in-person and PTBC was not able to offer a hybrid WebEx/In-Person meeting because the Evergreen Hearing Room does not have the technical capability to have WebEx, and asked Ms. Miller if DCA is addressing this issue. Ms. Miller responded that DCA's Communications Team is looking into the Evergreen Hearing Room option however currently, DCA HQ1 and HQ2 are the only Hearing Rooms that have the option to have WebEx currently. Dr. Rabena-Amen asked Ms. Miller to relay to DCA on behalf of the Board, to have the WebEx option available at the DCA Evergreen Hearing Room. Mr. Kaiser added that PTBC staff has been in constant contact with DCA to discuss modernizing the Evergreen Hearing Room to allow for the in-person/WebEx hybrid model for meetings. He stated that it is beneficial for all of the Boards and Bureaus within DCA.

(C) California Physical Therapy Association (CPTA)

Ms. Stacy DeFoe, Executive Director for the California Physical Therapy Association, presented on behalf of CPTA.

Ms. DeFoe thanked the Board for offering the WebEx option to attend Board meetings remotely throughout the pandemic and would be in favor of hybrid meetings going forward.

Ms. DeFoe reported that CPTA is planning on having the annual conference in-person on September 24-25, 2022, in Anaheim, CA. She added that there will be an in-person exhibit hall and invited the Board to participate.

Ms. DeFoe thanked Mr. Kaiser for participating in CPTA's Webinar Wednesday in July which was developed during the pandemic to provide education for California PT's and PTA's.

Ms. DeFoe reported that CPTA is celebrating 100 years of APTA this year and this is also 50 years of CPTA, as CPTA was established in 1971 and that there would be a float in the January 1st Rose Parade.

20. 320 Discussion and Possible Board Action for the Increase in the Exempt 321 **Level of the Executive Officer – Alicia Rabena-Amen** 322 323 Dr. Rabena-Amen presented the Executive Officer (EO) Exempt Level Allocation package to the members. She reiterated that this request is critical 324 325 due to the PTBC's EO not being in the correct classification. She referred the 326 members to the timeline in the meeting materials and stated that this is the 5th 327 request the Board has submitted. 328 329 Mr. Kaiser added that the last request the PTBC made was in September 330 2019, and in March of 2020 at the beginning of the pandemic, California identified a potential financial crisis and PTBC received notification in response 331 332 to the September request, that the request was denied due to financial concerns for California but asked the Board to consider resubmitting the 333 334 request once the financial crisis was alleviated. Mr. Kaiser added that the 335 financial crisis anticipated never happened and that currently. California is sitting on a surplus. Mr. Kaiser stated that the Board is very familiar with this 336 337 package, and it is just a matter of updating the data and resubmitting based on 338 the recommendation that CALHR made in their denial. 339 340 Dr. Rabena-Amen thanked DCA, Business, Consumer Services and Housing 341 Agency for their support on this request and stated that she was in support of 342 resubmitting the package now. She asked if it was necessary to reconvene 343 the EO Exempt Level Subcommittee, or if the Board should just move forward with resubmitting the package as included in the meeting materials. 344 345 346 Mr. Kaiser stated that the EO Exempt Level Subcommittee only has one 347 member, as the second member is no longer on the Board, and asked if the 348 President would like to appoint a second member to the Committee or would the members like to start the process of resubmittal. Members unanimously 349 350 supported the idea of resubmitting the package with the updated data. MOTION: 351 As requested by CalHR, I move to request support of 352 DCA, Office of Human Resources to work with PTBC 353 staff and appropriate agencies in obtaining an exempt level change that is appropriate to the PTBC's 354 355 Executive Officer position allocation and organization 356 structure. 357 M/S: Drummer/McMillian 358 359

Armstrong - Absent

VOTE:

319

360

361 362 363 364 365 366 367 368		Dru Elek Ervi McN Rab	ninguez- Aye mmer - Aye oy - Absent n - Absent Millian - Aye bena-Amen – Aye Motion Carried
369	21.	Board Member Elections	
370		(A) President	
371 372		NOMINATION:	Dr. Rabena-Amen nominated Ms. McMillian as Board President.
372		NOMINEE:	Ms. McMillian
374			Me. Memman
375		Ms. McMillian declined t	he nomination for Board President.
376			
377		NOMINATION:	Dr. Rabena-Amen nominated Dr. Drummer as
378		NOMINEE.	Board President.
379 380		NOMINEE:	Dr. Drummer
381		Dr. Drummer declined th	ne nomination for Board President.
382		Dr. Drammer desimed tr	ic nomination for Board Freditent.
383		NOMINATION:	Dr. Rabena-Amen nominated Dr. Dominguez as
384			Board President.
385		NOMINEE:	Dr. Dominguez
386			
387		Dr. Dominguez declined	the nomination for Board President.
388 389		NOMINATION:	Dr. Dominguez nominated Dr. Rabena-Amen as
390		NOMINATION.	Board President.
391		NOMINEE:	Dr. Rabena-Amen
392		MOTION:	To elect Dr. Rabena-Amen as Board President.
393		M/S:	Dominguez/McMillian
394			
395			Dr. Rabena-Amen accepted the nomination.
396		VOTE:	A Ab 4
397 398		VOTE:	Armstrong - Absent
398 399			Dominguez- Aye Drummer - Aye
400			Eleby - Absent
401			Ervin - Absent
402			McMillian - Aye

403 404		Rabena-Amen – Aye 4-0 Motion Carried
405 406 407	Dr. Alicia Rabena-Amen	elected President for 2022.
	(B) Vice-President	
409 410	NOMINATION:	Ms. McMillian nominated Dr. Drummer as Board Vice-President.
411 412	NOMINEE:	Dr. Drummer
413 414	Dr. Drummer declined th	e nomination for Board Vice-President.
415 416	NOMINATION:	Ms. McMillian nominated Dr. Dominguez as Board Vice-President.
417 418	NOMINEE:	Dr. Dominguez
419 420	Dr. Dominguez declined	the nomination for Board Vice-President.
421 422	NOMINATION:	Dr. Rabena-Amen nominated Ms. McMillian as Board Vice-President.
423 424	NOMINEE: MOTION:	Ms. McMillian To elect Ms. McMillian as Board Vice President.
425 426	M/S:	Rabena-Amen/Dominguez
427 428	VOTE:	Ms. McMillian accepted the nomination.
429 430 431	VOTE:	Armstrong - Absent Dominguez- Aye Drummer - Aye
432 433		Eleby - Absent Ervin - Absent
434 435		McMillian - Aye Rabena-Amen – Aye
436 437		4-0 Motion Carried
438 439	Ms. McMillian elected Vio	ce-President for 2022.
	(C) FSBPT Delegate	
441 442	NOMINATION:	Dr. Drummer nominated Dr. Armstrong as FSBPT Delegate.

443	NOMINEE:	Dr. Armstrong
444	Mr. Kajaar anaka an baha	olf of Dr. Armetrong and dealined the nomination
445 446	for FSBPT Delegate.	alf of Dr. Armstrong and declined the nomination
447	Tor Tobr T Bologato.	
448	NOMINATION:	Ms. McMillian nominated Ms. Eleby as FSBPT
449		Delegate.
450	NOMINEE:	Ms. Eleby
451	M/S:	McMillian/Drummer
452 453	Mr. Kaiser snoke on hel	nalf of Ms. Eleby and accepted the nomination
454	for FSBPT Delegate.	iali of Ms. Lieby and accepted the normination
455	ioi i obi i bologato.	
456	NOMINATION:	Dr. Drummer nominated Mr. Ervin as FSBPT
457		Delegate.
458	NOMINEE:	Mr. Ervin
459	M/S:	Drummer/Dominguez
460 461	Mr. Kaisar anaka an ba	half of Mr. Ervin and accepted the nomination
462	for FSBPT Delegate.	half of Mr. Ervin and accepted the nomination
463	ioi i obi i belegate.	
464	Mr. Kanotz, PTBC's Lega	al Counsel, recommended the members vote for
465	their preferred candidate.	
466		
467	VOTE:	Armstrong - Absent
468		Dominguez- Mr. Ervin
469 470		Drummer – Mr. Ervin Eleby - Absent
471		Ervin - Absent
472		McMillian – Ms. Eleby
473		Rabena-Amen – Ms. Eleby
474		
475		2 votes for Ms. Eleby and 2 votes for Mr. Ervin.
476		Mr. Kanotz recommended a revote.
477 478		Dr. Drummor added that Mr. Envin is relatively
479		Dr. Drummer added that Mr. Ervin is relatively new to the Board, and it is custom for a newer
480		member to be the FSBPT Delegate because of
481		the experience it provides. He added that Ms.
482		Eleby would be an excellent mentor to Mr. Ervin.
483		
484		Armstrong - Absent
485		Dominguez- Mr. Ervin

486		Drummer – Mr. Ervin
487		Eleby - Absent
488		Ervin - Absent
489		McMillian – Mr. Ervin
490		Rabena-Amen – Mr. Ervin
491		4-0 Motion Carried
492		
493	Mr. Ervin elected FSB	PT Delegate for 2022.
494		· ·
495	(D) FSBPT Alternate Del	egate
496	NOMINATION:	Dr. Drummer nominated Dr. Armstrong as
497	HOMMATION.	FSBPT Alternate Delegate.
498	NOMINEE:	Dr. Armstrong
499		21.7 umed ong
500	Mr. Kaiser spoke on t	pehalf of Dr. Armstrong and declined the nomination
501	for FSBPT Alternate	
502		, energence
503	NOMINATION:	Ms. McMillian nominated Ms. Eleby as Board
504		Vice-President.
505	NOMINEE:	Ms. Eleby
506	MOTION:	To elect Ms. Eleby as FSBPT Alternate
507		Delegate.
508	M/S:	McMillian/Drummer
509		
510	Mr. Kaiser spoke on	behalf of Ms. Eleby and accepted the nomination
511	for FSBPT Alternate D	Delegate.
512		
513	VOTE:	Armstrong - Absent
514		Dominguez- Aye
515		Drummer - Aye
516		Eleby - Absent
517		Ervin - Absent
518		McMillian - Aye
519		Rabena-Amen – Aye
520		4-0 Motion Carried
521	NA EL	
522	Ms. Eleby elected FSI	BPT Alternate Delegate for 2022.
523	(E) FORRT P 1 4 - 1	wate Delevete
524	(E) FSBPT Back-up Alter	rnate Delegate

525 526 527		The Board determined to use the procedure of establishing back-up alternate delegates in reverse alphabetical order by last name of Board members.
528		Backup Alternate Delegates for 2022 are:
529		Dr. Rabena-Amen
530		Ms. McMillian
531		Dr. Drummer
532		Dr. Dominguez
533		Dr. Armstrong
534		Dr. 7 timotrong
535	22.	Closed Session
536		(A) Pursuant to Government Code section 11126(c)(3), the Board will
537		convene to Deliberate on Disciplinary Actions and Decisions to be
538		Reached in Administrative Procedure Act Proceedings
539		(B) Pursuant to Government Code section 11126(a)(1), the Board will
540		convene to Consider the Evaluation of Performance of the Executive
541		Officer
542		
543		The Board entered closed session at 11:46 a.m. and reconvened into open
544		session to adjourn at 1:38 p.m. on December 10, 2021.
545		
546	23.	Public Comment on Items Not on the Agenda
547		
548		The Board requested public comment on items not on the agenda, and there
549		was no public comment.
550		
551	24.	Agenda Items for Future Meeting - March 23-24, 2022
552		TBD
553		
554		Mr. Kaiser stated that PTBC staff would work with DCA's Regulatory Unit to
555		have a presentation of their services at the next meeting as well as a
556		presentation of services by the Attorney General.
557	_	
558	25.	Adjournment
559		The meeting adjourned at 1:38 p.m. on December 10, 2021.